
 1 

TOOELE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION  
47 SOUTH MAIN STREET, TOOELE, UTAH 84074 

(435) 843-3160 
BUSINESS MEETING                                                                                 February 2, 2005  
 
The Tooele County Planning Commission Meeting was called to order at 7:00p.m. by Chairman 
George Mattena. 
 
Roll Call / Members in attendance: 
 Craig Anderson  Sharon Grgich  Marlene Thomas   
 George Mattena  Bill Bergener  Dennis Rockwell   
 
Staff:  
 Nicole Cline  Richard Clark  Mary Dixon 
 
1. Approval of meeting minutes from January 19, 2005: 
 Sharon made a motion to approve the meeting minutes from January 19, 2005. The 

motion was seconded by Bill. All concurred. 
   
  
Adjournment: 
 
 With no further comments Sharon made a motion to adjourn the business meeting. The 

motion was seconded by Bill. All members concurred. The business meeting adjourned at 
7:03 p.m 

 
 
 
 
APPROVAL: ____________________________________________ 
  Chairperson, Tooele County Planning Commission 
 
 
                                          

 
WORK MEETING   
                                                                            
1. CUP #1094-05 Dave Mattes Home Based Business (Lakepoint): 

Nicole explained to the commission where Mr. Mattes home was located in the Lakepoint 
area. Nicole stated that Mr. Mattes is one of the reasons why this ordinance was 
rewritten. Nicole explained that the business would be located in a detached garage 
located on Mr. Matte’s property. Nicole explained that this permit would be to repair 
electric motors, gearbox’s and minor auto repair. Nicole explained that the property is 
located in a medium to low density residential neighborhood. Nicole stated the ordinance 
as it appears in the Tooele County Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 2-1 (112) “Home based 
business” Means a commercial or light industrial use of a scale greater than home 



 2 

occupation but which is still secondary to the residential use. It may be conducted 
entirely within a dwelling, and accessory structure or on the premises. A home based 
business does not include agricultural activities. Bill stated that he had spoken to some of 
the residents in the area and they are in favor of this business. Charley Warr stated that 
they have one of these types of businesses in the Erda area and stated that the commission 
needs to place conditions on this. Dave Mattes stated that he does not fix cars for a living 
and he will not have many vehicles on the property. George stated that one of the 
conditions is to limit the number of vehicles that can be located on the property at one 
time.      
 
Bill made a motion to move CUP #1094-05 Dave Mattes Home Based Business 
(Lakepoint) to the next business meeting. The motion was seconded by Marlene. All 
concurred. 

 
2. AMD to CUP #0020-1-94 McFarland & Hullinger  Sec 21 & 28 T 1N R 6 W: 

Nicole explained where this quarry was located in the Stansbury Island area. Nicole 
stated that this permit was issued in 1995. Nicole stated that McFarland & Hullinger are 
mining silica at this located. Nicole showed the commission pictures of the mining 
operation as it exists today. Nicole stated that this is an operations plan update and it 
should be updated every five years. 
 
Sharon made a motion to move AMD to CUP #0020-1-94 McFarland & Hullinger  Sec 
21 & 28 T 1N R 6 W to the next business meeting. The motion was seconded by 
Marlene. 
All concurred 

 
3. PUD #003-99 Country Crossing Neighborhood Phase 2B Plat 5 (Design Phase): 
 Richard explained to the commission where this PUD was located in the Stansbury Park  

area. Richard showed the commission a drawing of the layout of this development. 
Richard also gave a brief background of this development. Richard explained that the 
approval would be for the design stage preliminary plat for the Villages at Country 
Crossing phase 2B plat 5. The proposed PUD is surrounded by high density urban 
residential development. There would be 35 residential lots that range in size from 8, 500 
ft 2 to 12,628 ft 2. and 2 greenbelt lots.  Richard stated that the construction drawings 
were approved on January 2, 2005 by the county engineer. Richard stated that the 
proposal is consistent with the approved concept plan. Richard stated that on December 
3, 2003 the conditions for PUD #003-99, which apply to phase 2B, require border fencing 
along SR36 and that it shall be a white country pole fence design. Nicole suggested that 
they expand the fence so that the headlights do not blind the on coming cars. Jim Ward 
stated that they would like to take the fence all the way to Bates Canyon Rd. The 
commission stated that they did not have a problem with them extending the fence. 
Sharon asked if we need to amend number 2 of the conditions to allow for the fence to be 
taken to Bates Canyon Rd. Nicole stated that it would only need to be done on the next 
plat.     
 
Sharon made a motion to move PUD #003-99 Country Crossing Neighborhood Phase 2B 
Plat 5 (Design Phase) to the next business meeting. The motion was seconded by Craig. 



 3 

All concurred.  
 
4. PUD #003-99 Country Crossing Neighborhood Phase 2B Plat 6 (Design Phase): 

Richard explained that this application is for the approval of the design stage for the 
Villages at County Crossing phase 2B Plat 6. Richard stated that it would consist of nine 
residential lots and a loop end road. The lots range in size from 8,750 ft 2 to 17, 692 ft 2. 
Richard stated that the fence also needs to be included on this plat. Marlene asked if the 
loop end road was larger then the last one. Nicole explained that is was 17 feet and the 
other one was 12 feet. Jim Ward stated that this one is 20 feet and in the middle of this 
loop it is landscaped and will be used for water retention. George asked Jim Ward if he 
would like to address the fence. Jim explained that they would like the fence continued 
down into this part of the development also. Jim explained that both five and six would 
be completed by the end of July. George asked if this size of lots were phased in. Nicole 
explained that they were.      

 
Sharon made a motion to move PUD #003-99 Country Crossing Neighborhood Phase 2B 
Plat 6 (Design Phase) with the fence modification included to the next business meeting. 
The motion was seconded by Craig. All concurred. 

 
 5. PUD #0014-02 Lakeside #13 (Richmond American Homes): 

Nicole briefly explained that facts of this development and where it would be located in 
the Stansbury Park  area. Nicole stated that the developer would like to place an 
emergency access road in this development. Nicole stated that the developer has agreed 
to put up a bond for the access road. Nicole explained that the temporary road would 
possibly be connected with Boyer Companies development and become a permanent 
road. Nicole explained that the road would be bonded and fenced and a crash gate would 
be at the end and it would have an all weather surface. Craig expressed concerns with an 
all weather surface and a crash gate. Nicole explained that Luecadia does not want people 
crossing their property. Nicole explained that this road would be used for construction 
equipment and emergency vehicles. Marlene asked if this road would be maintained in 
the winter for access. Nicole explained that Stansbury didn’t get that much snow, 
therefore it should be passable. Dennis asked who would maintain the road. Nicole 
explained that the developer would maintain it. Benson Whitney stated that was one of 
the reasons why they wanted to bond this road. Benson stated that they would submit a 
report on this road every three months. Nicole went over the rights that the developer has 
to develop the land. Nicole also went over the staff recommendations for this 
development. The planning division staff recommends approval of this phase 13 
application as it contains uses that are compatible with the existing zoning district. The 
request is in compliance with the general plan to meet the demands of diversified housing 
need. Being a planned unit development which is a form of a conditional use permit, we 
would recommend the following condition be attached. A temporary emergency access 
be built that will allow emergency vehicles to access the development from either the 
intersection of SR-138 at Delgada Estates or through Stansbury Place.    
 
Sharon made a motion to move PUD #0014-02 Lakeside #13 (Richmond American 
Homes) to the next business meeting. The motion was seconded by Craig. All concurred. 

 



 4 

 6. PUD #1007-04 Stansbury Place Concept Phase (The Boyer Company): 
 Nicole explained that this development was 311.62 acres. Nicole stated that she had 

spoken to Mr. Moffat and Gary Ziser and they are planning on making one of the parks 
larger. Nicole also stated that they have also added a new park to this new concept phase. 
Nicole stated that she had spoken to Mr. Moffat and Gary Ziser and they will make one 
of the parks larger. Nicole stated that at the last meeting this was tabled with a maximum 
limit on the open space. Nicole stated that this concept plan would have more open space 
then the commission had asked the developer to have. Nicole explained that she had gone 
to Farmington and looked at the development that the Boyer Company had constructed in 
that community, Farmington Ranches. Nicole showed the commission pictures of the 
development. Nicole stated that the development that the Boyer Company would like to 
place in the Stansbury area would look similar to the development in Farmington. Nicole 
stated that staff recommends the approval of this concept plan. Nicole stated that staff 
also recommends that a rezone of the planned commercial property to C-N be a favorable 
recommended to the Tooele County Board of County Commissioners. Nicole explained 
the staff recommendation to the commission.1. The approval is contingent upon signing 
of a development agreement with the board of county commissioners. 2. The 
development shall have no less than 10% open space. 3. A 1.1 acre park & ride will be 
located near the SR-138 entrance around the commercial development. 4. The developer 
shall provide a survey giving the legal description of the commercial properties within 45 
days for rezoning on the C-N commercial. 5. The developer shall dedicate 5 parks for the 
development, one no less than 5.83 acres, one for no less than 5.41 acres, one with no less 
than 1.2 acres, one with no less than 2.61 acres, one with no less than 1.51 acres, and one 
with 1.20 acres. 6. Trails to be developed in accordance with the approved and signed 
concept plan. 7. Trail design and cross section is to be approved by both the Tooele 
County Department of Engineering and the Stansbury Park Service Agency. 8. Density 
shall be capped at 1,005 single family dwellings. 9. No lot shall have less area than 8,000 
square feet. 10. There shall be no more than 766 lots with an area of 8,000 square feet. 
11. There shall be no less than 239 lots with an area of 10,000 square feet. 12. All storm 
drainage ditches, canals, channel and waterways shall be dedicated to the Stansbury Park 
Service Agency with a flood channel easement granted to Tooele County. If the 
dedication is refused by the Service Agency they shall not revert back to the developer, 
but to Tooele County as a dedication. 13. All interior trail system locations are to be 
approved by Stansbury Park Service Agency and Tooele County Department of 
Engineering. 14. All interior local access roads are to be built to the neighborhood street 
cross section. 15. Street trees shall be planted within 6 months from the date of final 
certificate of occupancy of a dwelling or structure. 16. All street species shall be those 
that are listed in the street tree selection list and follow planting guidelines. 17. No more 
than three species of a street tree shall be planted together, but shall have other species 
intermixed into the plantings. 18. Any substitute for a street tree species shall only be 
allowed if it is approved by the zoning administrator in writing. 19. Street trees along 
Village Boulevard shall be of those species in the street tree selection list and planted at 
the same time as the landscaping is done and shall be placed in such a manner as to 
provide shade in summer months to the asphalt of the road way at maturity. 20. All 
plantings of street trees shall have a minimum trunk size of one and one-half inches in 
caliper and comply with Tooele County Code title 15-5-4. Street Trees. 21. All parkstrips 
shall be landscaped in accordance with Tooele County Code 15-5-3, public parkstrip and 



 5 

right-of way with curb and gutter. Nicole stated that the staff recommendations had been 
worked out with the developer. George stated that last time when this development was 
tabled there was a maximum of 950 homes that could be built, how did we get 1,005? 
Nicole stated that this is a compromise with getting more parks. Gary Ziser explained that 
they met with the developer and had a great turn out at the meeting. Gary stated that they 
received a lot of good comments. Gary explained that there will be ½ acre of land to add 
on to Bayshore Dr. to create a park, also the engineering department will require a flood 
channel that is 40 feet wide which is part of the open space. Jeremy Scott expressed 
concerns with the increase in traffic that this development would bring into the area. Mr. 
Scott would also like a curb and gutter placed on Village Blvd, and he would also like the 
speed limit reduced in the area. George explained that the speed limit is taken care of by 
the County Engineer and the Sheriff’s Office. Richard Butler expressed concerns with the 
amount of traffic that this would create and he was in favor of the access road being built 
to accommodate the construction vehicles. Larry Shumway Tooele County School 
Superintendent stated that he would like to address some of the rumors that he has heard. 
Mr. Shumway stated that if the school district purchased all of the land brought to them 
by developers they would own half the county. Mr. Shumway also stated that if a school 
is on a concept plan it does not necessarily mean that they will purchase the land to place 
a school there. Mr. Shumway stated that they are constructing a third Jr. High School in 
the valley. Mr. Shumway also expressed appreciation to the commission for their efforts 
in securing land for the school board. Charley Warr expressed concerns with the water in 
the area. Charley was also concerned with not having the water for his cattle. Dick 
Moffat explained that they have agreed to have a 40 foot wide ditch to intercept any 
water that runs into the area and divert it some where else. Mr. Moffat explained that with 
this 40 foot wide ditch it will provide an additional buffer for the area. Mr. Moffat 
explained that the county engineer will see a report abut the ground water in the area. Mr. 
Moffat stated that the landscape will probably be different than the slide that was shown 
to them. George asked how deep the ditch would be. Mr. Moffat explained that the depth 
would be determined by the flow of the water. Sharon explained that this area does have 
under ground springs and asked if Mr. Moffat had taken this into account. Mr. Moffat 
explained that they have and their engineer has reviewed this. Brian Johnson stated that 
he would like the 950 cap on the homes. George explained that if we cap it at 950 then 
the developer can take away what they have given us and then we would have more 
homes than the 1,005.  Lee Childs explained that he is happy with the open space and if 
we limit it to 950 then what will we do with the other land? George stated that we have 
the right to make requests and the developer has the right to build, and if they meet all of 
the requirements we can’t stop them. Nicole explained what the commission has done in 
negotiating this development to benefit the county. Craig asked when this property was 
originally rezoned. Nicole explained that it was in 1996. Craig asked if this was planned 
out by Terracor. Nicole explained that it was. Craig explained that the Boyer Company 
will do what they like and he commended the Boyer Company for the concept plan that 
has been submitted. Craig expressed concerns with the road in the development and the 
amount of traffic that will need to use it. Dick explained how the Boyer Company could 
develop the road.  

    
 Craig made a motion to move PUD #1007-04 Stansbury Place Concept Phase (The Boyer 

Company) to the next business meeting. The motion was seconded by Marlene. Three 



 6 

members voted to have it moved to the next business meeting. Three members voted not 
to move it.   

  
 The commission asked Nicole to answer some questions that they had in regard to this 

development and approving it. Nicole commented on the questions that the commission 
had in regard to this development. Nicole explained that this development is a planned 
unit development and the commission can place conditions on each phase that they 
approve after the concept approval. Dick Moffat stood and addressed some of the issues 
that the commission had. Dennis asked Dick Moffat if 950 homes would get him a vote 
would he make it 950 homes? Dick Moffat stated that he would do the 950 home cap if it 
would get him a conceptual approval tonight.     

 
 Craig made a motion to move #1007-04 Stansbury Place Concept Phase (The Boyer 

Company) to the next business meeting with it set at 950 homes also that there is some 
concrete plan on how Village Blvd. will be continued on thorough the development     

 The motion was seconded by Marlene. All concurred 
 
Adjournment: 
 
 With no further comments Sharon made a motion to adjourn the work meeting and 

reopen the business meeting. The motion was seconded by Bill. All concurred.  The 
business meeting was reopened at 8:55 p.m.  

  
Sharon made a motion to approve PUD #0014-02 Lakeside #13 (Richmond American 
Homes) with the conditions attached as mentioned. The motion was seconded by Bill. 

 Verbal Roll Call: 
  Marlene yes  Craig yes  Sharon yes 
  Bill yes  Dennis yes  George yes  
  
 Sharon made a motion to approve AMD to CUP #0020-1-94 McFarland & Hullinger  Sec 

21 & 28 T 1N R 6 W  new operations plan, with staff recommendations attached. The 
motion was seconded by Marlene. 

 Verbal Roll Call: 
  Dennis yes  Craig yes  Bill yes 
  Marlene yes  Sharon yes  George yes  
  
 Sharon made a motion to approve PUD #1007-04 Stansbury Place Concept Phase (The 

Boyer Company) with the cap of 950 homes, a Village Blvd. plan included in the 
development agreement, with staff recommendations attached, and a minimum of 40 foot 
drainage, and ½ acre park to connect with Lakeside 13. The motion was seconded by 
Dennis. 

 Verbal Roll Call: 
  Marlene yes  Craig yes  Sharon yes 
  Bill yes  Dennis yes  George yes 
   
 Sharon made a motion to approve CUP #1094-05 Dave Mattes Home Based Business 

(Lakepoint) with staff recommendations attached. The motion was seconded by Bill. 



 7 

 Verbal Roll Call: 
  Sharon yes  Marlene yes  Craig yes 
  Bill yes  Dennis yes  George yes 
  
 Sharon made a motion to adjourn the business meeting. The motion was seconded by 

Bill. The business meeting adjourned at 9:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
APPROVAL:  ____________________________________________ 
    Chairperson, Tooele County Planning Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	TOOELE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
	47 SOUTH MAIN STREET, TOOELE, UTAH 84074

	With no further comments Sharon made a motion to adjourn the business meeting. The motion was seconded by Bill. All members concurred. The business meeting adjourned at 7:03 p.m
	APPROVAL: ____________________________________________
	Chairperson, Tooele County Planning Commission
	Nicole explained that this development was 311.62 acres. Nicole stated that she had spoken to Mr. Moffat and Gary Ziser and they are planning on making one of the parks larger. Nicole also stated that they have also added a new park to this new conce...
	Craig made a motion to move PUD #1007-04 Stansbury Place Concept Phase (The Boyer Company) to the next business meeting. The motion was seconded by Marlene. Three members voted to have it moved to the next business meeting. Three members voted not to...
	The commission asked Nicole to answer some questions that they had in regard to this development and approving it. Nicole commented on the questions that the commission had in regard to this development. Nicole explained that this development is a pl...
	Craig made a motion to move #1007-04 Stansbury Place Concept Phase (The Boyer Company) to the next business meeting with it set at 950 homes also that there is some concrete plan on how Village Blvd. will be continued on thorough the development
	The motion was seconded by Marlene. All concurred
	Adjournment:
	With no further comments Sharon made a motion to adjourn the work meeting and reopen the business meeting. The motion was seconded by Bill. All concurred.  The business meeting was reopened at 8:55 p.m.
	Verbal Roll Call:
	Marlene yes  Craig yes  Sharon yes
	Bill yes  Dennis yes  George yes
	Sharon made a motion to approve AMD to CUP #0020-1-94 McFarland & Hullinger  Sec 21 & 28 T 1N R 6 W  new operations plan, with staff recommendations attached. The motion was seconded by Marlene.
	Verbal Roll Call:
	Dennis yes  Craig yes  Bill yes
	Marlene yes  Sharon yes  George yes
	Sharon made a motion to approve PUD #1007-04 Stansbury Place Concept Phase (The Boyer Company) with the cap of 950 homes, a Village Blvd. plan included in the development agreement, with staff recommendations attached, and a minimum of 40 foot draina...
	Verbal Roll Call:
	Marlene yes  Craig yes  Sharon yes
	Bill yes  Dennis yes  George yes
	Sharon made a motion to approve CUP #1094-05 Dave Mattes Home Based Business (Lakepoint) with staff recommendations attached. The motion was seconded by Bill.
	Verbal Roll Call:
	Sharon yes  Marlene yes  Craig yes
	Bill yes  Dennis yes  George yes
	Sharon made a motion to adjourn the business meeting. The motion was seconded by Bill. The business meeting adjourned at 9:00 p.m.
	APPROVAL:  ____________________________________________
	Chairperson, Tooele County Planning Commission

